


(E) Ratification of telephone poll regarding grant submission to the
Needs Based Public School Capital Fund - County Manager
Derek Roland
(F} Schedule/reschedule public hearings for the March 8, 2022
regular meeting — County Attorney Eric Ridenour
(1) Revisions to the Building Code ordinance
(2} Revisions to the Building Height ordinance
(3) Revisions to the Soil and Erosion Control ordinance
requested by the state

(4) Reschedule hearing on the Wireless Telecommunications
ordinance

(5) Reschedule hearing on the Airport Hazard ordinance

12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12

All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the January 11, 2022 regular meeting

(B) Budget Amendments #143-151

(C) Tax releases for January 2022 in the amount of $3,337.99

(D)Order tax collector to advertise tax liens and collect any unpaid
taxes

(E) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

13.Appointments

14.Closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) in order to
preserve the attorney-client privilege

15.Adjourn/Recess









[Town Letterhead]

February 1, 2022

SENT VIA EMAH. AND REGULAR MAIL

Macon County Board of Commissioners
¢/o Mr. Jim Tate, Chairman

5 West Main Street

Franklin, NC 28734

(Email sent to: jim.tate@maconnc.org)

Re: Nikwasi Initiative/Town of Franklin
Dear Chairman Tate:

I write to ensure that, as a partner entity in Nikwasi Initiative, you are fully informed of
the Town of Franklin’s recent communications with the Initiative’s leadership, particularly
dealing with its recent efforts to secure grant funding. Enclosed you will find recent
communications between our Town Council and the Initiative. Please be reassured of the
Town’s commitment to remaining active in partnership with the Eastern Band, Macon County,
and Mainspring Conservation Trust in the vital work of preserving the Nikwasi Mound property.
We look forward to a productive meeting with the Nikwasi Initiative’s leadership.

Please feel free to contact me directly with any questions or concerns.

Very truly yours,

Jack Horton
Mayor, Town of Franklin

Encl: Letter to Nikwasi Initiative

{CS: 00086001 DOCK }












11(D). Jack Morgan will provide an overview of Change Order #014 on the
Macon Middle School Renovations project, and a copy of the change order
is included in the packet.

11 (E). Mr. Roland will be asking the board members to ratify a telephone
poll taken in connection to a grant submission to the Needs Based Public
School Capital Fund, and he can provide greater detail at the meeting.

11(F). As the board members will recall, we were scheduled to have two
public hearings at the February regular meeting, one on the Wireless
Telecommunications Ordinance and the other on the Airport Hazard
Ordinance. However, due to my absence, the public notices for those
hearings were not published, and therefore the hearings will have to be
rescheduled for the March regular meeting in order to meet the notice
requirements. In addition, the County Attorney has prepared revisions to
three other ordinances (Building Code, Building Height and Soil and
Erosion Control), and is requesting that the board schedule public hearings
on those for the March 8, 2022 regular meeting as well.







W{6SFA

YOUR DEPARTMENTS FIREFIGHTERS’ RELIEF FUND

Overview

The Firefighters’ Relief Fund (FRF) was established in 1907 to financially assist fire-
fighters that are injured while performing their duties, and to insure that no fire-
fighter would become financially destitute through no fault of their own. The FRF
has seen several legislative revisions over the course of its history. Some of these
added additional uses for the fund and recent changes placed additional guidelines
on the fund. The FRF faws are found under G.S. 58-84 and G.S. 58-85. Laws that
govern your departments use of the FRF are concentrated in G.S 58-84.

The FRF is funded by a portion of the Gross Premium
Tax (GPT) (G.S. 105-228.5(d)(3) on insurance policies
containing fire and lighting protection, as well as
certain automotive policies. Of the total GPT coilected,
20% is dedicated to the FRF. The fund is distributed by
the Commissioner of Insurance to local firefighter
relief funds {LFRF) annually. The amount each
department receives is based upon several
calculations. Each County is allocated an amount

based on the amount received the previous year. If the
total amount to be allocated statewide during the cur
rent year is above or below the amount distributed the
previous year, the adjustment allocated to each county
is based on the population of the County as compared
to the overall State population. Once the County
dlstnbutlon amount is determined, the amount the County is allocated is divided
between the eligible departments within the County by the amount of property tax
covered. For example, if your Department protected 17% of the property within
your County, your LFRF check would be for 17% of the County allocation. The
checks from the Commissioner are mailed out after the beginning of each budget
year in July or early August to eligible departments. Amounts designated for
departments who are not eligible for distribution for reasons described in this
pamphlet create the State Firefighters’ Relief Fund. This fund helps provide Line of
Duty Death and Accidental Death and Dismemberment insurance to firefighters of
all eligible departments across the State. The fund also provides scholarships to
firefighters and their dependent children.

www.ncsfa.com NCSFA Office 1.888.54.NCSFA
1.888.546-2732




NCR7)

North Cavelina Stata Areliahiers Azwoclallen

Uses Controlled by the LRFB

The following uses are aliowable after the LRFB has reviewed and approved them:

1) To assist financially any firefighter in active service for a sickness or injury
contracted in the line of duty. The amount is dependent on need and availability of
funds as determined by the LRFB upon review and the annual earning capability of
the individual.

2} To provide reasonable support to family or dependents of a firefighter who may
lose their life in the line of duty by accident or sickness.
The amount is dependent on need and availability of
funds as determined by the LRFB upon review and the
annual earning capability of the individual.

3) To pay premiums in the Fraternal Insurance Fund of
NC if the firefighter is a member and the LRFB has
determined the firefighter cannot pay for reasons of
disability.

4} To cover necessary management and investment
costs that are reasonable and appropriate in relation to
the assets, purpose, and financial security of the local
Firefighters' Relief Fund.

Uses Controlled by the LRFB but Requiring Approval of the NCSFA Executive
Diractor

The following uses are allowable after the LRFB has reviewed and approved them,
and a request is made and approval given by the Executive Director of the NC State
Firefighters’ Association. The reason for the review and approval of the NCSFA
Executive Director is to insure it is an allowable use, the fund is “financially sound”
or stable, and the use will not reduce the funds to an extent where they would not
be available for uses 1), 2} and 3) above.

5) If a firefighter becomes financially destitute, the LRFB can request the use of
funds to be used to assist the firefighter. The firefighter must have served honorably
as determined by the local relief fund board. Destitution must be through no fault
of the firefighter {i.e. gambling, poor investments, reckless spending, unwillingness
to work, etc., would not be considered), and is defined as the inability to provide
basic provisions to themselves or their families. Such basic provisions include but
are not limited to, assistance with housing, vehicle or commuting expenses, food,
clothing, utilities, medical care, and funeral expenses. The amount is dependent on
need and availability of funds as determined by the LRFB upon review and approval
of the Executive Director.

www.ncsfa.com NCSFA Office 1.888.54.NCSFA
1,888.546-2732




NCN

6) Upon approval of the LRFB and a request made and approval given by the
Executive Director of the NC State Firefighters’ Association, the payment of monthly
assessments in the NC Firefighter’s and Rescue Workers Pension Fund is allowed.

7) Upon approval of the LRFB and a request made and approval given by the
Executive Director of the NC State Firefighters’ Assaciation, the payment of workers
compensation premijums are allowed, including those to the Volunteer Safety
Workers Compensation Fund.

8) Upon approval of the LRFB and a request made and approval given by the
Executive Director of the NC State Firefighters’ Association, the payment of
premiums for other types of insurance and pension protection for firefighters. For
example, dues to the NC State Firefighters’ Association, the NC Association of Fire
Chiefs, or the National Volunteer Fire Council are allowed since these three
associations provide LODD, A&D, and scholarship programs for firefighters
otherwise eligible for relief fund benefits.

9) Upon approval of the LRFB and a request made and approval given by the
Executive Director of the NC State Firefighters’ Association educational benefits to
firefighters and their dependents are allowed. These are generally in the form of
scholarships that allow application and a fair access to all members and
dependents.

10) Upon approval of the LRFB and a request made and approval given by the
Executive Director of the NC State Firefighters’ Association, annual physicals that
are required for firefighter positions by the Department of Labor, or recommended
by the National Fire Protection Association. While not intended to supplement fire
department operational costs, this is intended to help insure that firefighter safety
is paramount and that necessary physicals may be given in the absence of available
fire department funding.

11) One of the most complex uses of the fund, upon approval of the LRFB and a
request made and approval given by the Executive Director of the NC State
Firefighters” Association, is the use of relief fund monies for a supplemental
retirement fund. This requires significant planning and future projections, a stable
fund balance, and other controls requiring more detailed review. It is addressed in
more detail in a following section “Establishing and Maintaining a Supplemental
Retirement Program within Yo
E ay b B

www.ncsfa.com NCSFA Office 1.888.54.NCSFA
1.888.546-2732




R [ESFA

llunh taofing Stie Araflgliars kasoclzlion

Since the FRF laws remained virtually unchanged until the 1950’s, several
department’s LFRF across the State got laws passed at the State level to allow them
uses for their fund that were not allowed by Article 84 at the time. There are
currently over 50 local bills of this nature. Due to changes in Article 84 of the
General Statutes since 1950, most recently 2014, most of the provisions used in
local laws are now allowed in Article 84, rendering many local laws obsolete and the
necessity for new ones non-existent. Changes in the 2014 legislative session also
rendered several components of existing local laws repealed, such as interest only
spending limits, or fund uses not otherwise found and aflowed in GS 58-84. The new
provisions of the law allow increased flexibility to utilize the funds for the benefit of
firefighters across the State.

Reqgquirements

To be eligible to receive funds for a LFRF, the fire department must follow several
guidelines.

1} It first must be a rated department by the Commissioner of Insurance; and 2}, a
member of the NC State Flreﬁghters Association (GS 58-84-1).

3) Next, it must appoint a LocalReli nd:Board’ (LRFB) consisting of five members
(GS 58-84-30}): two members servmg at the pleasure of the fire department elected
by the membership who are qualified as beneficiaries of the fund; two of whom
shall be elected or appointed by the Mayor, Board of Alderman, or City Council if it
is a municipal department, or other local governing body to serve at thelr pleasure
or, |f|t is a non-municipal department, t\ ity Comy
t at.thei ,_,pleasuregi and one appomted by the Commnss;oner of Insurance If
the local fire chief is not one of the members appointed, they shall serve as
ex-officio members of the local Board. The Local Relief Fund Board (LRFB) shall
then elect a Chairperson, Treasurer, and Secretary. The Secretary and Treasurer may
be the same person.

The funds received from the Commissioner of Insurance shall be maintained by the
Treasurer in a separate and distinct fund, the balance and use of which shail be
reported annually to the NC State Firefighters’ Association. Each year a good and
sufficient surety bond must be purchased equal to the amount held, but in most
cases the Commissioner of Insurance purchases one bond for all Local FRF accounts
each year. Unless advised differently by the NCSFA annually, a LRFB Treasurer may
assume a statewide bond has been purchased.

s iRNLYa Fad

.JA‘T
-
<.,
-
+



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

AGREEMENT
This Agreement is made and entered into this the day , 20, by and

between Macon County, a North Carolina Body Politic and Corporate, and Old Mud
Creek, LLC , hereinafter “Developer”.

WITNESSETH:

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County has an Ordinance known as the “Macon
County Subdivision Ordinance” and the same was originally adopted on or about June 2,
2008, effective September 1, 2008, and the same has been amended and restated on
October 12, 2021 (herein “Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS § 159.24 of said Ordinance and G.S. 160D-804.1 provides for
performance guarantees at the time the plat is recorded to assure successful completion of
required improvements to a subdivision; and

WHEREAS in accordance with Macon County Subdivision Ordinance § 159.24
and G.S. 160D-804.1(1) does require a Subdivider to obtain a performance guarantee
which means any of the following: a) surety bond issued by a company authorized to do
business in this State; b) letter of credit issued by any financial institution licensed to do
business in this State; and c) other form of guarantee that provides equivalent security to a
surety bond or letter of credit; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Macon County Subdivision Ordinance § 159.24
and G.S. 160D-804.1(3), the performance guarantee shall be in the amount of 125% of
the reasonably estimated cost of completion at the time the performance guarantee is
issued; and

WHEREAS, Developer, in compliance with § 159.24 of the Macon County
Subdivision Ordinance and G.S. 160D-804.1, desires to enter into such an agreement with
Macon County to complete all required improvements for Mountain Breeze Subdivision
in Macon County, North Carolina, and does specifically agree to fully complete the
following improvements to such subdivision as shown on attached Exhibit A, the same
being incorporated herein by reference as if more fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Developer agrees to cause a performance guarantee in the amount of
$_51,025_, as set forth in attached Exhibit B and in favor of Macon County in accordance
with the provisions of the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance at the time the plat is
recorded; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to



memorialize their agreement and to comply with the Ordinance above-referenced.

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING AND THE
COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES HERETO DO AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. That in order to comply with the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance,
Developer does hereby agree with Macon County to fully complete all of the
improvements shown on attached Exhibit A, the same being incorporated herein
by reference as if more fully set forth herein to the reasonable satisfaction of
Macon County in connection with and to Mountain Breeze Subdivision in
Macon County, North Carolina, and in accordance with the terms of the Macon
County Subdivision Ordinance referenced hereinabove,

2. That in order to comply with the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance,
Developer does hereby agree to secure a performance bond in the form as set forth
in attached Exhibit B, the same being incorporated herein by reference, in the
amount of § 51,025 in connection with Mountain Breeze Subdivision in
Macon County, North Carolina, in order to insure the completion of the
improvements as shown on attached Exhibit A, the same being incorporated
herein by reference, to the reasonable satisfaction of Macon County and in
accordance with the terms of the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance
referenced hereinabove.

3. That the parties agree to and confirm the recitals set forth hereinabove.

This Agreement is made and entered into the day and year first above written.

Macon County

By:

Chairman, Macon County
Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board

( County Seal )



By:

Authorized Representative,
Developer






Accepted By Accepted Date


















MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
January 11, 2022
MINUTES

Chairman Tate called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. All Board Members,
County Manager Derek Roland, County Attorney Eric Ridenour, members of the
news media, county employees and citizens were present. Finance Director Lori
Carpenter and Deputy Clerk Mike Decker participated virtually.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Chairman Tate announced that he is a University of Georgia
alumnus and was in Indianapolis for last night’s college football national
championship game. Per a “gentleman’s” bet with Mr. Roland, Chairman Tate
handed Mr. Roland a Georgia Bulldogs hat and asked that Mr. Roland wear it
during tonight’s meeting. Mr. Roland obliged.

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Chairman Tate requested that all in attendance
rise and a moment of silence was observed.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: Led by Mr. Roland, the pledge to the flag was recited.
PUBLIC HEARING(S): None

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Marshall Platt inquired about the purpose of the
Robert C. Carpenter Community Building and stated that he had requested use
of the space and was unable to use the facility. Mr. Platt also asked about the
agenda item referencing Recreation Commission appointees in regard to how
those vacancies are announced and the application process used to fill them.
Mr. Roland informed Mr. Platt that the appointments was an item that
Recreation Director Seth Adams had been working on for some time, but that he
could give Mr. Platt an application. Commissioner Young confirmed the
Recreation Commission meetings are open to the public and encouraged Mr.
Platt to attend. Mr. Platt shared that he had had several conversations with Mr.
Adams as recently as today and that each time he had requested use of the
facility he was denied. He questioned whether the facility was for the purpose of
building community or a way to raise revenue for special interests such as the
chamber of commerce or gun shows. Mr. Platt said his request was to use the
gym for folk dancing instead of the facility’s multi-purpose room. He said the
policy currently is that only tennis shoes are allowed on the floor. Chairman
Tate and Commissioner Young both responded that the purpose was to protect

Minutes
1.11.22
Page 1 of 5



the gym floor surface from damage. Mr. Platt said the dancers wear a soft
rubber-soled shoe which will not mark or damage the flooring and explained the
safety issues which prevent the dancers from wearing tennis shoes.
Commissioner Beale suggested Mr. Platt look at the option of using Cowee School
instead. Mr. Roland suggested Mr. Platt present the request to the Recreation
Commission once it is up and running. He also reminded Mr. Platt of their
meeting scheduled for Thursday (January 13) in which they could have further
discussion.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon
a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Higdon, the
board voted unanimously to approve the agenda, as adjusted, as follows:

* To remove the by-laws for the Recreation Commission from the Consent
Agenda. This item was not listed and there should not be an
understanding implied that those would be approved tonight. Mr.
Ridenour will review those and bring them back for approval and adoption,
per Mr. Roland.

* To add a closed session with no action to follow, per Commissioner Beale.

REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS - None.

Economic Development Administration Grant Application and Request for
Matching Funds - Bob McCollum and Elaine Eisenbraun from the Nikwasi
Initiative appeared before the board again to continue discussing a proposed
economic development administration grant application and a request for county
funding. Mr. McCollum began by introducing Juanita Wilson from the Eastern
Band of Cherokee Indians and then proceeded to provide an update on the grant
application discussed at the December 14, 2021 regular meeting, and provided
some artists’ renderings of the proposed project. Mr. McCollum stated that the
Eastern Band Tribal Council had approved to support what was needed for the
grant application. He said Principal Chief Richard Sneed is not able to specify a
dollar amount at this time, but they have shared a willingness to offer, at a
minimum, the value of the building, which is approximately $300,000. Mr.
McCollum stated that the initiative is still asking for $100,000 from the county,
which is 1.7 percent of the requested $5-million grant. Commissioner Beale
referenced a meeting held on Friday (January 7} with the stakeholders and said
there are still many decisions that have to be made. Ms. Eisenbraun stated the
funding is on a rolling cycle and that the Economic Development Administration
(EDA) has indicated they have already received more applications than they have
funding. She said the EDA has communicated that they like the partnership
Nikwasi has with the EBCI on this project and has encouraged them to get the
application in within the next two weeks. After considerable discussion,
Commissioner Shields made a motion to obligate the $100,000 pending the $5-
million grant award. The motion did not receive a second and therefore died.

Minutes
1.11.22
Page 2 of 5









to reappoint Andrea Anderson, Patrick Betancourt, Bobbie Contino, Diane
Cotton, Kyle Garner, Bonnie Potts, Karen Stiwinter, Karen Wallace and
Rick Westerman to the Community Funding Pool Team, and to appoint
new member Jennifer Jenkins, all for three year terms.

(F) Board of Equalization and Review (5 seats) -~ Upon a motion by
Commissioner Young, seconded by Commissioner Higdon, the board voted
unanimously to reappoint Dwight Vinson, Donald Holland, Gary Drake,
Kristine Flaig and Richard Lightner to the Macon County Board of
Equalization and Review. Term of appointment is for one year.

(G)Community Advisory Committee (4 seats) ~ The board members were made
aware of four vacancies on the Community Advisory Committee, and notice
of those vacancies will be posted on the county’s website. No action was
taken.

CLOSED SESSION - At 7:56 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Beale,
seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted unanimously to go into
closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss potential
property acquisition with a plan to take no action following the closed session.
At 8:10 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Young, seconded by
Commissioner Higdon, the board voted unanimously to come out of closed
session and return to open session. No action was taken.

RECESS: At 8:10 p.m., upon a motion from Commissioner Higdon, seconded by
Commissioner Young, the board voted unanimously to recess until Thursday,
February 3, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. in the commission boardroom on the third fioor
of the Macon County Courthouse.

Derek Roland Jim Tate
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chair

Minutes
1.11.22
Page 5 of 5













































